
 QUESTION 55:
The draft RFP and discussions with the EOSDIS program office have stated objectives to improve usability and accessibility (Surveillance Plan – Attachment C, Para 4.3).  The draft RFP is silent on specific definition or objectives relative to these parameters.  Please clarify.

RESPONSE 55:

The SOW (Section 1.2) states that the contractor’s overall goal is to improve the reliability, availability, functionality, operability, and performance of the science data processing system within the EOSDIS while reducing operational and maintenance costs.   There is currently a plan to develop a Strategic plan for Evolution.  The government is preparing a Representative Task Order #2 for Evolution which will be posted with the Final RFP for evaluation purposes.   The government expects all potential offerors to propose an approach and costs for this evolution representative task.  
QUESTION 56:

M.4-3., p. 126- Mission Suitability Factor: Weights and Scoring) The contractor understands that the cost-realism analysis is evaluating the proposed cost to the proposed program plan as opposed to evaluation against a “should be” cost.  Please confirm.  

RESPONSE 56:

Correct.  The cost-realism analysis will evaluate if the proposed cost is sufficient  to complete the requirements within the proposed technical approach, as outlined in Section M.5, Cost Evaluation Factor.  

The Government will not be conducting a Should-Cost Review, as described in FAR 15.407-4.
QUESTION 57:

Please provide a summary of the current headcount and employee grade levels required to sustain the EOS EMD.
RESPONSE 57:
The government will not provide a summary of the current headcount and employee grade levels as requested.   The government expects the potential offeror to propose its staffing plan and labor categories in accordance with the offerors proposed approach.
QUESTION 58:

We request that GSFC confirm that all EMD processes are not “incumbent proprietary”, and that the documents that we have requested will be inserted into the EED library.  See list contained herein.

RESPONSE 58:

The EMD processes currently utilized by the incumbent contractor are not proprietary.  The requested public documentation will be added to the EED library if not already available in the library.  However, company and competition sensitive information, such as staffing plans and spending profiles, will not be put in the library.
QUESTION 59:

We understand from discussions with EOSDIS EMD staff that there is a “ticket process” for managing and tracking the verification of groups of requirements (new, modified, deleted) and problem reports as opposed to simply tracking problem reports against the software existing baseline.  We would like to understand the details of this process since it is critical to the release process used to sustain EOSDIS EED.  There is indication from discussions that this may be a Raytheon proprietary process.  If proprietary, will the government request a process by which this information will be phased out of the existing contract to the new contract? If this was developed with government funding, could we discuss with the technology transfer office the availability of the technology to give us the opportunity to further invest into the sustainment of the EOSDIS program?

RESPONSE 59:

The ‘ticket process’ is a process (not a technology) developed and matured under the ECS and EMD contracts.  It is not a proprietary process of the incumbent and it is described in the 302-EMD-001 Software Maintenance and Development Plan.

QUESTION 60:

Are there other tools, including tools for CM of COTS software and Hardware Configuration, that were developed with government funds that would be provided upon award of the EED contract? Are the existing tools proprietary to the incumbent contractor or COTS?  If COTS, would the government consider releasing a list of these tools to improve transition of the future contract? If the tools were developed under the contract would the government provide greater detail into the tools and processes that operate these tools?

RESPONSE 60:

For CM of COTS software, the incumbent uses the following tools:

· Software Licensing lists are maintained in Excel worksheets 

· The Software Baseline is maintained in the ECS Baseline Information System (EBIS), which uses EMD developed CM software tools to provide web-based information on the hardware and software configuration. 

· The following COTS and EMD developed software is used to support the software baseline:

· ClearCase – used in conjunction with EMD developed CM tools to generate web pages for display of software baseline information.

· TestTrack Pro – used in conjunction with EMD developed problem tracking and software baseline delivery tools

· STTS merge tool (EMD developed) – used to request merges to the software baseline

For CM of COTS hardware, the incumbent uses the following tools:

· Hardware Diagrams are maintained in Excel worksheets

· Property Management utilizes a Remedy database and the Remedy ILM tool. The database and reports can be exported to Excel 

· The Hardware Baseline is maintained in ECS Baseline Information System (EBIS), which uses EMD developed CM software tools to provide web-based information on the hardware and software configuration. 

During transition, the incumbent will turn over responsibility for the systems described above including hardware, EMD developed software, COTS software, licenses and maintenance, worksheets and databases, and any available documentation to the new contractor.  

.

QUESTION 61:

My company has an audited and approved compensation system.  My company would like the RFP to state where there is an approved compensation system; the prime should submit an approval letter in lieu of completing the Fringe Benefits Exhibits.  My company requests the following change to paragraph O in Section L of the RFP to state the following:

FRINGE BENEFITS EXHIBITS (suggested wording)

As addressed in the Mission Suitability Proposal instructions (Subfactor B), the offeror and all service subcontractors (as defined in paragraph (d) of NFS provision 1852.231-71) will provide a detailed list of their fringe benefits and company estimated cost per hour, along with an itemization of the benefits that require employee contributions and the amount of that contribution as a percentage of the total cost of the benefit in Exhibits C-13A and C-13B Fringe Benefit Chart.  Two exhibits will be submitted, one containing the average of fringe benefit information for all the exempt labor categories and one containing the average of fringe benefit information for all the non-exempt labor categories.  Where there is an approved compensation system; the prime will submit an approval letter in lieu of completing the Fringe Benefits Exhibits.

RESPONSE 61:

The government will not make suggested changes and expects all potential offerors to fill out exhibits as requested.  This data will not only be used to determine reasonableness of the Total Compensation Plan, but also its impact on obtaining and retaining qualified personnel.
QUESTION 62:

Regarding Table C3 - PRIME & SIGNIFICANT SUBCONTRACTOR DIRECT LABOR HOURS AND PRIME DIRECT LABOR COSTS, should Prime Direct Labor Cost be unburdened or burden through overhead?

RESPONSE 62:

Table C3 is specifically for "labor" cost.  No overhead should be applied to the labor dollars for the purposes of this exhibit.

QUESTION 63:
It appears the Prime Direct Labor Rate Matrix requests six (6) years of rates.  What is the period of performance for the rate tables?  

RESPONSE 63:

The government anticipates contract award on April 24, 2010.   The contract has a five year effective ordering period.  However, orders issued within the effective ordering period may extend one (1) year beyond the end of the ordering period.  Year six (6) rates would be in effect in those circumstances.  
QUESTION 64:

Can we anticipate different contract types for future task orders or can the contractor assume all future task orders will be CPAF?  

RESPONSE 64:

Per in Clauses G.3, AWARD FEE FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS (1852.216-76), and G.4, AWARD FEE FOR END ITEM CONTRACTS (1852.216-77), all Task Orders issued will be Cost Plus Award Fee (Service or End Item).

QUESTION 65:

Can the Government provide a standard dollar value to be proposed in each year for EED Materials in the solicitation such that all bidders are making the same assumptions regarding normal sustainment material content?

RESPONSE 65:

RESPONSE PENDING.  
QUESTION 66:

Does NASA continue to promote the Mentor/Protégé program?

RESPONSE 66:

Yes, NASA encourages the use of the Mentor/Protégé program.   See clauses/provision, I.1, 1852.219-77  NASA MENTOR-PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM (MAY 1999),  I.14, 1852.219-79 MENTOR REQUIREMENTS AND EVALUATION (MAR 1999), and Section L, Subfactor B-- Management Approach.  

QUESTION 67:

Will the Government support my company for site visits to the three DAAC locations and the EMD test/development facility?

RESPONSE 67:

The government does not plan on having any site visits.  Please see the EED website for floor plans and other related documents:   http://esdis.eosdis.nasa.gov/eed/   
QUESTION 68:

Reference: Clause B.7, GSFC 52.231-90, Limitation of Indirect Costs (JUL 2006)

The referenced clause states limitations may be adjusted at the discretion of the Contracting Officer under limited circumstances.  Does the Government consider changes to a Contractor’s Government approved Forward Pricing Rates as a basis for change to the limitations?  
RESPONSE 68:

The Government does not consider changes to a Contractor’s Government approved Forward Pricing Rates as a basis for change to the limitations.  The clause cited, GSFC 52.231-90 Limitation of Indirect Costs, specifies rationale of change in laws which may affect the contractor's indirect rates proposed.  The clause allows for increases in the following cases (emphasis added):   

               “ The limitations may be adjusted at the discretion of the Contracting Officer to the extent that increases to the Contractor's indirect costs are caused by:
                (i) New or revised statutes and court decisions and/or written ruling or regulation by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.
                (ii) Wage determinations and/or regulations issued by the Department of Labor pursuant to the Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended.”
 

QUESTION 69:

In the response to EED Draft RFP Question #12, the Government indicated that a "Representative Task Order #2 for Evolution" will be included in the Final RFP.  In order to ensure that Offerors can sufficiently describe their technical approach, we request that the page count for the Mission Suitability volume be increased from the current 100 page limitation in order to accommodate the response to this additional task. 

RESPONSE 69:

The government has agreed to your request and will increase the page limitation for the Mission Suitability Volume to 125 pages.  
QUESTION 70:


Under Section L.18.2.d, Paragraph 2, and the Statement of Work (SOW), we request clarification about the Sections, as the section numbering seems to be inconsistent in a few instances. For example, paragraph 2 references "WBS level 1 for Statement of Work Sections 1, 5, 6, 7 and 8".  However, the SOW, is limited to a total of three sections. Also, Section 3 only goes to levels 3.1 through 3.8.  Another example is the reference to "WBS level 3 for Statement of Work Sections 3.1.1, 3.1.2, 3.1.3, 3.2.1, 3.2.2., and 3.2.3" provided in paragraph 2. Again,  there are not SOW sections numbered as such. (See pg. 110 of the RFP and pgs. 1-2; 7; 10 of the SOW) 


RESPONSE 70:

The government has updated section L.18.2d as stated below:

Offerors shall provide an Exhibit C-2 by WBS using the numbering and to the level of detail shown in Appendix A to the Statement of Work for RTO 01 – WBS level 1 for Statement of Work Sections 3.1, 3.5, 3.6, 3.7, and 3.8 if applicable; WBS level 2 for Statement of Work section 3.2 (i.e. Appendix A WBS elements 2.1 and 2.2); WBS level 3 for Statement of Work Sections 3.3 and 3.4 (i.e. Appendix A WBS elements 3.1.1, 3.1.2, 3.1.3, 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 4.1.1, 4.1.2, 4.1.3, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, and 4.2.3).  For RTO 02, offerors shall provide an Exhibit C-2 chart at WBS Level 1 and lower levels as appropriate from the WBS structure shown in Appendix A to the Statement of Work.  C-2 charts shall be submitted rolling the WBS level 3 proposed cost up to WBS level 2 and level 1.  Each WBS element requires a separate exhibit except that exhibits for WBS elements for which no work is proposed may be omitted.  See 2 f below for accompanying Basis of Estimate requirements. 
 

QUESTION 71:


Under Section L.19, Offerors are required to provide "Small Business Subcontracting Plan history; provide latest Individual Subcontract Report (ISR) and Summary Subcontract Report (SSR) (formerly known as the SF 294 and 295 reports) and supporting rationale." Since the ISR and SSR provides Plan history, can the government clarify what additional "supporting rationale" is being required? (See pgs. 115 - 116)


RESPONSE 71:

The supporting rationale relates to the subcontracting plan proposed for EED.  See L.17, Subfactor D (a) 6 for a description of the requested Supporting Rationale: “Offerors shall discuss the rationale for any goal proposed that is less than the Contracting Officer’s recommended goal in any category.  In addition, the Offeror shall describe the efforts made to establish a goal for that category and what ongoing efforts, if any, the Offeror plans during performance to increase participation in that category.”

QUESTION 72:

Would the government consider reducing the Page limitation of Basis of Estimate ( BOE)?

RESPONSE 72:

The government has agreed to this request and has revised the BOE page limitation to 50 pages.
QUESTION 73:
The draft RFP B7 GSFC 52.231-90 LIMITATION OF INDIRECT COSTS (JUL 2006) puts ceiling on the indirect rates that the contractor can charge to the Government.  Should this clause be flowed down to subcontracts?  Are indirect cost rates required for the subcontracts?  Note: Attachment B pg 1 and 2 Matrices and pg 3 Matrix seem to require different information from the prime and subcontractors.

RESPONSE 73:

The Clause GSFC 52.231-90 Limitation of Indirect Costs does NOT flow down to subcontracts.

QUESTION 74:
Are the hours allotted for tasks a ceiling also or will the Government adjust the number of hours upward as necessary to complete required tasks?

RESPONSE 74:

There is no ceiling associated with hours in Task Orders.  
In accordance with GSFC 52.232-94,  ESTIMATED COST INCREASES, the Contractor may submit a proposal to support a request for an increase in the estimated cost of a task order. 
  

QUESTION 75:  
The previously provided EOSDIS documents EXCEL spreadsheet Items 7. and 12. do not appear to contain data regarding ECHO design documentation or lists of ECHO COTS and open source software.  Will the Government provide this data as part of the previous documentation request?

RESPONSE 75:
The project will provide the COTS software list used by ECHO (Item 12) and ECHO design documentation (Item 7), and other related ECHO documentation on the EED website.

QUESTION 76:
Will the Government be providing labor categories and education/experience requirements (such as the GSA standard labor categories) or will each offeror be required to develop and define their own labor category?  
RESPONSE 76:
The government will not provide labor categories and education/experience requirements.  The government expects that all potential offerors will propose its own set of labor categories in accordance with their technical approach.  


